

HERE SET OUT, IN NUMBERED CLAUSES, THE BYLAWS OF DANCING TO
EAGLE SPIRIT SOCIETY

PART 1 – INTERPRETATION

1. In these Bylaws, unless the context otherwise requires,
 - a. “Elder” means a person who has been ordained according to the DTESS ordination process. This person can also be registered with the Vital Statistics Agency of British Columbia for the purpose of Solemnizing marriages under the BC Marriage Act.
 - b. “Elder in Training” means a person who has committed to receive full ceremonial rites, is a fire keeper and carries a pipe. The Elder in Training may be appointed to the Spiritual Council but is not ordained until the full training and process of ordination is complete.
 - c. “Secretary-Registrar” means the Secretary of the Tribal Council who is responsible for communicating with Vital Statistics for the purpose of registering and deregistering appointed Elders who will be able to solemnize marriages under the BC Marriage Act. The Secretary-Registrar sits on the Elders Oversight Committee.
 - d. “Tribal Council” means the directors of the Society for the time being.
 - e. “General Council” means the registered members of the Society.
 - f. “Chief” means the President of the Society.
 - g. “Vice Chief” means the Vice President of the Society.
 - h. “Society Act” means the Society Act of the Province of British Columbia.
 - i. “Registered address” of a member means the address as recorded in the register of members.
 - j. “Organization” means a legal or commercial entity, which includes a corporation, society, foundation, partnership or association.
 - k. “Two Spirit” person means someone who is Gay, Lesbian, Bisexual, Transgender or Transsexual.
 - l. “Allies” means all other people who support Two Spirit people.
 - m. “Assembly of Chieftains” means members of the society who served their full terms as Chiefs, Vice-Chiefs and or Elders. These members have

been inducted into this assembly and the members continue to live a life free of chemical and alcohol addictions while promoting the spiritual values of the DTESS. It also means members of other Native organizations who served their full terms as Chief, Vice-Chief, Princess or Elder who is free of alcohol and/or drug addictions.

- n. “Speaker of the Assembly of Chieftains” means a person who has been elected by the Assembly of Chieftains to be the Speaker representing the Assembly for a period of 4 years. In order to keep the Assembly fresh, no one person can serve consecutive terms but each person can serve more than one term.
2. The definitions in the Society Act on the date these bylaws become effective apply to these bylaws.
3. All references to the singular shall include the plural and plural the singular, and all references to the masculine shall include the feminine and feminine the masculine.

PART 2 – MEMBERSHIP

1. The members of the Society are the applicants for incorporation of the Society and shall be called the General Council members. All subsequent applicants for membership who have met the criteria set within these bylaws shall be called a member of the General Council.
2. To be a member of the General Council, an individual must:
 - a. Be self-identified as a two spirited individual or an ally or a friend of the Two Spirit Community;
 - b. Support the Constitution, By-Laws, and Spiritual Tenets of Dancing To Eagle Spirit Society; and
 - c. Practice his or her spirituality in the Native American Way and in accordance to the Society’s Spiritual Tenets.
 - d. Each member inducted into the Assembly of Chieftains become lifetime honorary members of the DTESS, and their fees are waived as long as they abide by these bylaws.
3. Individuals eligible for membership in the General Council must submit an application to the Society and pay the membership fee as may be established by the Tribal Council from time to time.

- a. If an individual cannot afford to pay the membership fee at the time of their application, he or she can ask the Tribal Council for a full or partial scholarship to offset the membership fee. If such is awarded, the scholarship is for the current year. The member must reapply for the scholarship each year, or pay the full membership fee in subsequent years.
 - b. The Tribal Council may, at its sole discretion, grant honorary memberships. Such memberships are valid only for the fiscal year in which they are granted.
 - c. Each year, the Society, at its Annual General Council Meeting, may grant a maximum of four (4) Life Time Honorary Memberships. Such membership is to recognize a member who has substantially contributed to the Society and its Mission in the previous year. The membership will be granted on the recommendation of the Tribal Council and voted upon at the AGM.
4. An individual ceases to be a member of the General Council if:
 - a. He or she delivers a letter of resignation, in writing, to the Secretary of the Tribal Council or by mailing or delivering such a letter to the official address of the Society; or
 - b. He or she dies, or in the case of an organization on its dissolution; or
 - c. He or she is expelled by special resolution at a General Council Meeting of the General Council. For such a resolution to be considered binding, a brief statement of the reason or reasons for the proposed expulsion shall accompany the notice of special resolution for expulsion and the member shall be given an opportunity to be heard at the General Council Meeting before the special resolution is put to vote. The notice of such resolution shall be delivered 30 days prior to the meeting. This bylaw is in accordance to the Society's Act of BC; or
 - d. If the member has not paid his or her membership fees for the current year, the member ceases to be a member automatically after the next AGM.
5. With the exception of a member that has been expelled from the Society, any member who has ceased to be a member under Part 2, Clause 4, may reapply to become a member.
6. Every General Council member shall uphold the constitution and comply with these bylaws.
7. The Society will consist of an elected Board of Directors (known as the Tribal Council) who are responsible for the operational business of the Society, an

appointed Council of Elders who promote the spiritual values of the Society, an Oversight Committee responsible for oversight and discipline of ordained Elders, and an Assembly of Chieftains (made up of Chiefs/Vice-Chiefs/Presidents and Princesses of other Societies) who oversee any and all lands owned by the Society in compliance with the Religious Land Act of BC and the Federal Religious Land Act of Canada. All of the elected members to the Tribal Council, Council of Elders and Assembly of Chieftains must be free of any alcohol and/or drug dependencies and promote a healthy spiritual life style.

8. The General Council will elect its Tribal Council at each Annual General Meeting, except for the Chief and the Secretary-Registrar who are each elected to a two-year term unless a position becomes vacant.

PART 3 – MEETINGS OF COUNCIL MEMBERS

General Council Meetings of the Society shall be held at the time and place, in accordance with the Society Act, that the elected Tribal Council decides. There will be at least two General Council Meetings per year.

1. Every General Council Meeting, other than an Annual General Council Meeting, is an Extraordinary General Council Meeting.
2. The Tribal Council may, when they see fit, convene an Extraordinary General Council Meeting.
3. Notice of a General Council Meeting shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting, and in case of special business, the general nature of that business.
4. The accidental omission to give notice of a General Council Meeting to, or the non-receipt of a notice by, any of the council members entitled to receive notice does not invalidate proceedings at that meeting.
5. The first Annual General Council Meeting of the Society shall be held not more than eighteen months after the date of incorporation and after that an Annual General Meeting shall be held at least once in every calendar year and not more than 15 months after the last preceding Annual General Meeting.

PART 4 – PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL COUNCIL MEETINGS

1. Special business is:
 - a. All business at an Extraordinary General Council Meeting except the adoption of the rules of order; and
 - b. All business transacted at an Annual General Council Meeting except:

- i. The adoption of the rules of order;
 - ii. Consideration of the financial statements;
 - iii. Report of the elected Tribal council;
 - iv. Report of the auditor, if any;
 - v. Election of the Tribal Council;
 - vi. Appointment of the auditor, if required; and
 - vii. Other business that, under these bylaws, ought to be transacted at an Annual General Council Meeting, or business that is brought under consideration by the report of the Tribal Council, issued with the notice convening the meeting.
2. No business, other than the Elders Prayer and the adjournment or termination of the meeting, shall be conducted at a General Council Meeting at a time when a quorum is not present.
3. If at any time during a General Council Meeting there ceases to be a quorum present, business then in progress shall be suspended until there is a quorum present or until the meeting is adjourned or terminated.
 - a. A quorum is three (3) General Council members present, although a greater quorum number may be determined by Council members at a General Council Meeting.
 - b. If within 30 minutes from the time appointed for a General Council Meeting a quorum has not been present, the meeting, if convened on the requisition of Council members, shall be terminated; in any other case, it shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next week, at the same time and place, and if, at the adjourned Council Meeting, a quorum is not present within 30 minutes from the time appointed for the meeting, the council members present constitute a quorum.
 - i. Subject to the Clauses under Part 6 of these bylaws, in the absence of the Chief or the Vice-Chief, the Elders may appoint someone to preside as chairperson of a General Council Meeting.
 - ii. If at a General Council Meeting,
 1. There is no Chief, Vice-Chief or other Tribal Council member present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for holding the council meeting, or

2. The Chief, Vice-Chief and other Tribal Council members present are unwilling to act as chairperson,
 3. Then the Elders can choose an Elder to become the chairperson.
 4. A General Council Meeting may be adjourned from time to time and from place to place, but no business shall be transacted at an adjourned council meeting other than the business left unfinished at the council meeting from which the adjournment took place.
 - a. When a General Council Meeting is adjourned for 10 days or more, notice of the adjourned council meeting shall be given as in the case of the original meeting.
 - b. Except as provided in this bylaw, it is not necessary to give notice of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned General Council Meeting.
 5. Resolutions proposed at a General Council Meeting do not need to be seconded.
 - a. The chairperson of a meeting or an Elder may move or propose a resolution.
 - b. In the case of a tie vote, the Elders will have a second vote in addition to the vote to which the chairperson may be entitled as a member, and the proposed resolution may be passed or defeated.
 6. Each General Council member in good standing who is present at a General Council Meeting is entitled to one vote.
 - a. Voting is by show of hands.
 - b. Voting by proxy is not permitted.

PART 5 – TRIBAL COUNCIL

1. The Tribal Council may exercise all the powers and do all the acts and things that the Society may exercise and do, and which are not by these bylaws or by statute, or otherwise lawfully directed or required to be exercised or done by the Society in a General Council Meeting, but subject nevertheless to:
 - a. All laws affecting the Society;
 - b. These bylaws; and

- c. Rules not being inconsistent with these bylaws, which are made from time to time by the Society in a General Council Meeting.
2. No rule made by the Society in a General Council Meeting invalidates a prior act of the Tribal Council that would have been valid if that rule had not been made.
3. The Elders advise the Tribal Council.
4. The Chief, Vice-Chief, Secretary, Treasurer, and up to seven (7) other persons shall form the Tribal Council of the Society.
5. The Tribal Council shall be composed of at least three (3) persons or a greater number as may be determined from time to time at a General Council Meeting.
6. The Chief shall hold office for a term of two (2) years, and shall retire at the second Annual General Council Meeting after being elected, when a successor shall be elected.
 - a. All Tribal Council members, except for the Chief and the Secretary–Registrar, shall hold office for a term of one year, and shall retire from office at the next Annual General Council Meeting, when successors shall be elected.
 - b. Tribal Council members may be elected to consecutive terms.
 - c. All General Council members running for Tribal Council positions shall declare the position for which they seek to be elected.
 - d. If a position on the Tribal Council becomes vacant, or is vacant at the end of an Annual General Council Meeting, the Tribal Council may appoint a person to the vacant position.
 - e. The Tribal Council may at any time ask the Elders to appoint a General Council member to fill a vacancy on the Tribal Council, without regard for the cause of the vacancy.
7. No Tribal Council member shall be remunerated for being or acting as a Tribal Council member, but a Tribal council member shall be reimbursed for all expenses necessary and reasonably incurred while engaged in the conduct of the business of the Society provided that the Society has the funds for such.

PART 6 – PROCEEDINGS OF THE TRIBAL COUNCIL

1. The Tribal Council and the Elders may meet at the places they decide to dispatch business, adjourn, and otherwise regulate their meetings and proceedings as they see fit.

2. The quorum necessary to conduct business shall be three (3) and this quorum shall always consist of at least two (2) members of the Tribal Council and one of the Elders.
3. The Chief shall be the chairperson of all meetings of the Tribal Council, but if at a meeting the Chief is not present within 30 minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the Vice Chief shall act as chairperson, and if neither the Chief nor the Vice-Chief is present then an Elder shall act as the chairperson.
4. A Tribal Council may at any time convene a meeting, and the Secretary–Registrar, on the request of the Tribal Council, shall convene a meeting of the Tribal Council.
5. The first meeting of the Tribal Council shall be held immediately following the election or appointment of a Tribal Council at an Annual General Meeting or other General Council Meeting of members or any meeting of a Tribal Council at which Tribal Council members are appointed to fill vacancies on the council.
6. A Tribal Council member who is absent temporarily from British Columbia may send or deliver to the address of the Society a waiver of notice, which may be by letter, telegram, telex, fax, cable, or email of any meeting of the directors and may at any time withdraw the waiver, and until the waiver is withdrawn:
 - a. No notice of meetings of the Tribal Council shall be sent to that Council member, and
 - b. Any and all meetings of the Tribal Council of the Society, notice of which has not been given to that Council member, shall be valid and effective if a quorum of the Tribal Council is present.
 - c. Meetings of the Tribal Council can be moderated on the Chat line of the group. When such is exercised then a record of this meeting shall be printed and included in the minutes of the next meeting.
 - d. Decision of the Tribal Council can be made by emailing each other and the record of this be printed out and kept as a record of consensus.
7. All Tribal Council decisions are made by consensus except as provided for in the following subsection:
 - a. If the Chair believes that consensus cannot be reached, the Chair may, at the Chair’s sole discretion, either table the matter for a decision at a future meeting of the Tribal Council or call for a vote. If the Chair calls for a vote, a motion, duly moved and seconded, must be put before the Tribal Council. After debate, votes will be cast by a show of hands and shall be

registered as “for,” “against,” or “abstain.” A simple majority is required to pass the said motion.

8. No resolution proposed at a meeting of Tribal Council need be seconded.
9. The Elders, and/or the Chief, may move or propose resolutions at a meeting of the Tribal Council.

PART 7 – DUTIES OF THE TRIBAL COUNCIL

1. The Chief:
 - a. Shall preside at all meetings of the Society and the Tribal Council.
 - b. Is the Chief Executive Officer of the Society and shall supervise the other elected members of the Tribal Council in the execution of their duties.
2. The Elders are the Spiritual Advisors and can attend all Tribal Council meetings.
3. The Vice-Chief shall carry out the duties of the Chief in the absence of the Chief.
4. The Secretary–Registrar shall:
 - a. Conduct the correspondence of the Society from the Society’s address,
 - b. Issue notices of meetings of the Society and the Tribal Council,
 - c. Keep minutes of all meetings of the Society and the Tribal Council,
 - d. Maintain the members registry from the Society’s address.
5. In the absence of the Secretary–Registrar from a meeting, the Tribal Council shall appoint another person to act as Secretary-Registrar of the meeting.
6. The Treasurer shall:
 - a. Maintain the financial records, including books of account, necessary to comply with the Society Act, and
 - b. Render financial statements to the Tribal Council, General Council members and others when required.
7. The offices of the Secretary and Treasurer may be held by one person who shall be known as the Secretary–Treasurer.

- a. When a Secretary–Treasurer holds office the total number of elected Tribal Council shall not be less than 3.
8. The Elders shall advise and guide on spiritual matters at Tribal Council meetings.

PART 8 – OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

1. The Oversight Committee shall consist of the Secretary–Registrar, a member of the Tribal Council appointed by the Tribal Council, and one member of the Council of Elders. The Society will endeavour to maintain a strong Aboriginal representation on the Oversight Committee.
2. Under no circumstances can ordained Elders make up more than 50% of the members of the Oversight Committee.
3. The Oversight Committee shall certify that an Elder’s ordination has been completed in accordance with the Society’s policies and will then direct the Secretary–Registrar to register the Elder with the appropriate government agency as having the rites to perform legal marriages.
4. The Oversight Committee will also be responsible to receive and deal with complaints involving the Elders. Normally the Oversight Committee will hold talking/healing circles to investigate and resolve the complaint. If further remedial action is required, the Oversight Committee will formulate recommendations for such action up to and including directing the Secretary–Registrar to deregister the Elder with the appropriate government agency so that he or she no longer has the right to perform legal marriages.
5. Recommendations for remedial action from the Oversight Committee will be taken to the Tribal Council for consideration and final decision.

PART 9 – COUNCIL OF ELDERS

1. The Council of Elders will be comprised of a maximum of four (4) Elders or Elders in Training as appointed by the Tribal Council on the recommendation of the Oversight Committee.
2. Members of the Council of Elders will serve a term of five (5) years and may be reappointed to the Council of Elders for an unlimited number of successive terms. The members on the council of Elders must be free of any alcohol and or drug dependencies and live a healthy spiritual lifestyle.
3. Appointment to the Council of Elders does not imply ordination.

4. Absence of a re-appointment to the Council of Elders does not imply revocation of the rights granted through ordination.
5. If a member of the Council of Elders is an ordained Elder and is, by order of the Tribal Council, deregistered under Part 8, Clause 4, they will no longer be eligible to serve on the Council of Elders.
6. The Council of Elders is responsible for:
 - a. The spiritual guidance of Society members;
 - b. Developing and recommending to the General Council changes to the Spiritual Tenets, and Process of Ordination of the Society; and
 - c. Promoting the values and lifestyle of Native American Spiritual Ways.

PART 10 – ASSEMBLY OF CHIEFTAINS

1. The Assembly of Chieftains will be comprised of past Elders and past Chiefs and Vice-Chiefs who served their full terms in our Society, who are free of any chemical or alcohol addictions and upon acceptance by the membership at the AGM become inducted into the Assembly of Chieftains as Lifetime Honorary members as long as they are free of Chemical and Alcohol addictions and continue to promote the spiritual values of DTESS. The society will also invite other Chiefs and Princesses of other Native Two Spirit Organizations who have served their full terms free of alcohol or drug addictions to join and serve in the Assembly of Chieftains.
2. Roles: Members of the Assembly of Chieftains serve two roles: i) to be the second sober chamber for members who have been refused membership; ii) to serve as trustees over any Society's land in accordance with the BC Religious Land Act and the Federal Religious Land Act.
3. The Assembly of Chieftains will elect a person called the Speaker of the Assembly for a 4-year term. This person will sit on the Board of the Tribal Council, will bring issues of concerns to the Tribal council and will bring back issues to the Assembly.
4. Any proposed purchase of land or disposing of land will be debated and approved by the Tribal council then sent up to the Assembly of Chieftains who will also debate for approval or disapproval the proposed debenture. If it is approved then both council shall affix their signature on the documents. If it is disapproved then

this venture will be presented to the General membership for debate as the members will have the final say.

5. If a person applied for membership and has been refused membership then the person has a recourse of appealing this decision to the Assembly of Chieftains. The person would put in writing his/her request and the Assembly of Chieftains would debate and pass a motion to over turn the refusal of not approving the person membership. This decision would be communicated to the Secretary of the Tribal council who would then enter the name of the person in the Register of membership.

Part 11 – SEAL

6. The Tribal Council may provide a common seal for the Society and may destroy a seal and substitute a new seal in its place.
7. The common seal shall be affixed only when authorized by a resolution of the Tribal Council and than only in the presence of the person prescribed in the resolution, or if no persons are prescribed, then only in the presence of the Tribal Council.

PART 12 – BORROWING

1. In order to carry out the purposes of the Society the Tribal Council may, on behalf of and in the name of the Society, raise or secure payment or repayment of money in the manner they decide, and in particular by without limiting the foregoing, by the issue of debentures.
2. No debenture shall be issued without the sanction of a special resolution.
3. The general council members may, by special resolution, restrict the borrowing powers of the Tribal Council, but a restriction imposed expires at the next Annual General Meeting.

PART 13 – AUDITOR

1. This part applies only where the Society is required or has resolved to have an auditor.
2. The Tribal Council who shall also fill all vacancies occurring in the office of the auditor shall appoint the first auditor.
3. At each Annual General Council Meeting the Society shall appoint an auditor to hold office until the auditor is re-appointed or a successor is appointed at the next Annual General Meeting.

4. An auditor may be removed by ordinary resolution.
5. An auditor shall be promptly informed in writing of appointment or removal.
6. The auditor must attend General Council Meetings.

PART 14 – NOTICES TO COUNCIL MEMBERS

1. A notice may be given to a member, either personally or by mail, to the member's registered address.
2. A notice sent by mail shall be deemed to have been given on the second day following that on which the notice is posted, and in proving that notice has been given it is sufficient to prove the notice was properly addressed and put in a Canada Post mail receptacle.
3. Notice of a General Council Meeting shall be given to:
 - a. Every council member shown on the register of members on the day notice is given, and
 - b. The auditor if Part 12 applies.
 - c. No other person, as they are not entitled to receive a notice of a General Council Meeting.

PART 15 – BYLAWS

1. On being admitted to membership, each council member is entitled to, and the Society shall provide without charge, a copy of the constitution and bylaws of the Society.
2. These bylaws shall not be altered or added to except by special resolution of the General Council, which are present at the General Council members meeting. The special resolution shall be passed by 75% of the general council members present.
 - a. Such resolution becomes effective on the date of its acceptance by the Registrar of Company in BC as being in compliance with the Society's Act.
3. The Bylaws of the Society include the numbered clauses set out in this document and the following three (3) appendices:
 - a. Appendix A – Native Spiritual Tenets;
 - b. Appendix B – Process of Ordination; and

- c. Appendix C – Organizational Chart.
4. The appendices shall be read as an integral part of this document and are subject to the same rules and regulations as the numbered clauses.

Conduct of Officials

All Elected Tribal Council members, appointed Elders or inducted members of the Assembly of Chieftains are to be free of alcohol addictions or chemical dependencies. If a member of any of those groups develops any such health issue they shall remove themselves from office (or will be removed from office if they fail to do so) until such time as the health issue has been resolved. Consideration shall be given in the following manner:

1. In the case of an elected member to the Tribal Council the member can run for office again once the issue is resolved.
2. In the case of an appointed Elder, the Elder must take a leave of absence but will be welcomed back without re-appointment or further consequences once the issue is resolved to a level that is in line with our spiritual philosophies and practices.
3. In the case of a member of the Assembly of Chieftains, the member must take leave from the Assembly. Once the issue has been resolved they are welcome to come back to the Assembly without any further consequences.

When a member needs to take such leave, all privileges associated with each Council/Tribal Council/Committee and all titles conferred upon them are revoked until they have dealt with the adverse effects of this health issue.

Appendix A

Aboriginal Spiritual Tenets

Creation theology is the belief that the universe and life itself was created by a Supreme Being or deity's supernatural intervention. Historically, Animistic religious beliefs and practices were expressed in many forms and their creation stories give important insight into their beliefs. For example: for the Iroquois, the world was an island resting on the back of a turtle; the Northwest Coast peoples knew that Raven had released the first men from their confinement in a clam shell. Artistic expression, such as seasonal dance, chanting, storytelling, music, carvings, and totem production were imperative components of native spirituality. The Creator was honored, and the equality of all life – plant, animal, and human – was expressed through artistic symbolism and ritual events. The female divinity was often honored.

1. Our Spiritual tenets are based in this type of belief and more specifically incorporate, in a general way, that of the Plains Cree and Eastern Algonquin rituals. They are a set of beliefs, values, and practices that have been passed down through the oral teachings and spiritual inspirations of Elders from those First Nations through to our present time Elders and will continue to be passed down and kept alive from generation to generation.
2. We hold deep reverence to the following Ancient truth of life as passed to us from our Elders:
 - a. We are eternal spirits manifested in human forms and are connected to the Creator, Spirit Guides and Ancestors. We are not separated from but part of Creation;
 - b. Each person is in charge of his/her own life: She/he is fully responsible for her/his own path.
3. Our Society accepts that we are all related and interrelated to all of Creation when we say “All My Relations.”
4. The many and multi-leveled teachings of the Medicine Wheel inform our practices and our lives.
5. We believe that spirituality affects change. For us this is experience most strongly through the sacred rituals taught to us by the Elders including the sweat lodge ceremonies, the healing/talking circles, sacred pipe ceremonies, vision quests, potlatch feasts, give away, naming ceremonies for adults and children, sacred dances, commitment ceremonies and others.
6. Besides perpetuating these sacred rites, the Elders embody forth a way of living and a code of ethics to live by which, while no doubt been mostly lost through

colonization, is being reclaimed staying true to our belief of each person being the decider of his/her own life, each person must choose for herself or himself how and if they will integrate this way of life into their lives.

7. We strive to walk in a way where each of us as individuals and as a community, may relate to one another, to those around us and to all of Creation based in respect, humility, generosity, kindness, truth and integrity.
8. We promote deep respect to the maternal aspect of divinity, the mother-nature that dwells within all life. This divine principle is shown forth on earth in the sanctity of all life and the mystery of the seasons showing us the divine renewal of life.
9. We promote deep respect to the paternal aspect of divinity, the father-nature that dwells within all life. This divine principle is shown forth through the protectors of life and the mysteries of transformation, sacrifice and death.
10. We believe there are insights and mystical experience common to all spiritual practices and or religious bodies of the world and which cannot be claimed as the exclusive possession of any of them. We encourage all to pray as they have been taught and, as much as possible, to do so sitting side by side in the sacred circle of life.

ALL MY RELATIONS

Appendix B

The Process of Ordination

The Purpose:

This document serves to record a process that has been practice, in various forms, for centuries in the Aboriginal communities and to bring clarity and give guidelines for government agencies and the DTESS (Dancing To Eagle Spirit Society) on the Indigenous religious practices and how one becomes ordained according to our teachings. Although many people profess that the Aboriginal Spiritual practice is not an organize religion this process will document that we as Aboriginal People are highly organized and have literalised our rituals through our oral traditions from generation to generation.

The Process:

The process is multi-layered, requires commitment at each step and, while the general steps are outlined here, the specific process for an individual is guided by spirit as discerned by the Elders.

1. An individual comes routinely to the sweat lodge to pray and cleanse themselves. This goes on a regular repetitive basis for a while. When the individual goes through their emotional/spiritual healing and feels confident about themselves and the ceremony they usually want to start giving back to their community.
2. Eventually, and usually after intense ceremonies and healing or after an Elder receives a vision and speaks to the individual about it, the individual commits to work with the community and begins to volunteer and work with the Sacred Fire. During this time period the individual learns a deeper understanding of life and it's mysteries. It is working with the fire that the individual may get the calling to serve Creator and the community at hand in a deeper meaningful commitment.
3. Our Principal Fire Keeper trains the individual to work with the fire and the individual commits to work with the ceremonial fire for a year or more during which he/she learns the meaning of the altar, the sacredness of interconnection and that we are all connected and related. The fire keeper also learns about the 7 Seven Sacred Fires: Fire of Creator (God), Fire of the Sun, Fire of the Moon, Fire of the Star, Fire of ceremonies, Fire of the Earth, the Fire within one self. During this commitment the individual and Elders consider and discern the individual's next step (continue to be Fire Keeper, accept a personal or community pipe, walk away from ceremony, etc.).
4. If the individual and the Elders believe it to be right, an individual may accept to work with the Elders to receive a ceremonial pipe. This process usually lasts a year or longer. During that time, the individual receives instruction about being a

pipe carrier, is given the opportunity to work with one of the Elders pipe, learns about the importance of using those tools and learns the meaning and legends attached to the pipe. Once the individual has demonstrated an understanding of the Sacred Pipe and its teachings and the Elders have discerned the timing is right, the Elders and the individual determine if and when a community pipe will be transferred. The individual prepares a give away and a feast and calls for a Potlatch where the community and the Elders gather at a specific time and date. Then a potlatch/feasting and giveaway to the people is followed by a witnessing of a transfer of a community pipe to the individual. Once this is done the Elders and the people gathered share in the sacred moment and the individual receives further instruction from the people gathered. The individual continues to work with the Elders to learn more about the pipe and to get grounded with the pipe and it's responsibilities. Community Pipe Carriers are able to conduct pipe ceremonies and talking circles and may accept tobacco for these ceremonies.

5. After time, with prayer, reflection and sitting with the spirit guides, a Community Pipe Carrier and/or the Elders may initiate a conversation regarding further commitment and training toward a transfer of full ceremonial rites. If the Community Pipe Carrier makes this commitment and the Elders discern it to be right, the Elders begin working with the Community Pipe Carrier and train the person in leading: sweat lodge ceremonies, smudging circles, talking circles Vision Quests, marriage and other ceremonies. During this time of training, the individual also prepares another give away and feast and the Elders call for the people to gather at a set time and date. At the set time and date, the Potlatch, giveaway and witnessing begins and the transfers of ceremonial rites (ordination) are witnessed. This is often done during a sweat lodge ceremony.

The transfer of ceremonies or the ordination is final and cannot be reversed. Once the transfer is done the individual has full ceremonial rites and becomes equal in having the rights to perform spiritual rites as that of our Elders and is now considered a young Elder.

For the purpose of the business of the Dancing To Eagle Spirit Society, our Secretary - Registrar of Ordination will be the one responsible to register the individual in the Province of BC under the Marriage Act. Should the individual cease to be our representative, the Secretary - Registrar will deregister the individual at the appropriate government agencies; however, the individual will continue to have the right to conduct all other ceremonies except solemnizing marriages.

A certificate of the Ordination shall be issued and signed by the Elders. The certificate shall record the date and place where the transfer of full ceremonial rites (ordination) took place.

Appendix C

Organizational Chart

